
 

 
Page 1 

 
  

 Rathdrum 
                              City Council Agenda                                  

                            April 13, 2016 
                                         6:00 p.m. 
   
 

 

Location:  City Council Chamber 
  8047 W. Main Street     
  Rathdrum, ID  83858 
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 

 

1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 

4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

5) CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  
A) Regular Council Minutes of March 09 
B)   Regular and Special Bills as presented 
C)   Amendment to Prairie Sky Development Agreement 
D)   Approval of Surplus of Police Department and Water Department Equipment 

             

6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 
 

7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  
(No formal action allowed – 3 minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on subsequent 
agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are inappropriate at this time and 
should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent appointment or after tonight’s meeting, 
if time permitting. Repeated comments of the same or similar topic will be considered out of 
order and not allowed. 
 
 
 



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

 

8) PUBLIC HEARINGS 
  

9) OLD BUSINESS 
 

10) NEW BUSINESS  
 

A)   Discussion of Urban Renewal District 
B)   Approval of the City Administrator position and job description 
C)  Approval for the Welcome Banners for Main Street 
D)   Approval of School Resource Officer position and job description 
E)   Approval of Generator Maintenance Agreement with Western States 
F)   Approval of rental agreement with Rowand Machinery for Street Sweeper  
G)   Consideration task order No. 16-01 with Welch Comer & Associates for New Rathdrum Water   

Production well – Bid Phase Services and Construction phase services 
H)   Consider agreement with HMH Engineering for Community Choices Project – School Zone 

Flashing RRFB Crosswalk Signs 
 I)   Approval of contract with Chris Hansen for additional cleaning of the Mountain after the wind 

storm 
 J)   Approval of Contact with Jerry Mason in regards to Impact Fees 
K) Set the date for the Budget Public Hearing 

 
11) STAFF REPORTS 
 

 Finance Reporting 

 Park and Recreation Reporting 

 Police Reporting 

 Public Works Reporting 
 
12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 
 

 Child Abuse Prevention Proclamation 

 Appointment for Citizen Development Advisory Committee 
 

13) COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

14) ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 

 
Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities will be 

provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 



1 
 

City of Rathdrum Council Meeting                                                                         

 

Executive Agenda Summary  

TO:   Mayor Vic Holmes 
   Council President Fred Meckel  
   Councilors Paula Laws, Mark Worthen and Debbie Holmes 

FROM:  Melissa Taylor, Finance Director/Treasurer  

CC:   Department Heads 

5) Consent Calendar 

A) Regular Council Minutes of March 09, 2016- For your review 

B) Regular & Special Bills- For your review 

C) Amendment to Prairie Sky Development Agreement- Prairie Sky Phases 2, 3, 4 and 5 was 
approved by City Council on December 9, 2015. As part of the process for Preliminary 
Plats, Prairie Sky Phases 2, 3, 4 and 5 needs to amend their existing Development 
Agreement with the City.  

D) Approval of Surplus of Police Department and Water Department Equipment- See memo 
in packet.  

6) Ceremonies & Reports 

None 

7) Visitors Comments 

8) Public Hearings 

9) Old Business 

10) New Business 

A) Discussion of Urban Renewal District 
                                                                                                                                                          

April 13, 2016 



2 
 

City Staff and the Mayor have been meeting with the Economic Development Committee to see 
if an Urban Renewal District could benefit the City of Rathdrum.  
 

B)  Approval of City Administrator Position and Job Description 
 

City Staff and the Mayor have put together a draft Job Description for your review and 
approval. This information was compiled with other local Cities Job Descriptions and the 
assessment of the City of Rathdrum needs. 
 

C)  Approval for the Welcome Banners for Main Street 
 

Parks & Recreation Director Singer has proposed to replace the City Banners that are located on 
the light posts on Main Street.  The current banners are very old and deteriorating.  We would 
like to continue beautifying our City and are proposing replacing the Banners with new ones. 
Funding would be shared between all City Departments as well as the Council Discretionary 
Fund. 
 

D)  Approval of School Resource Officer Position and Job Description 
 

With the School levy passing we are moving forward with the hiring of an SRO officer.  The 
Lakeland School District will fund $35,000 of the annual salary.  This officer would work 
primarily in the schools (Junior High, High School, STEM, KTEC and NIC- when completed) 
covering major sporting events, major dances and any other school events.   
 

E) Approval of Generator Maintenance Agreement with Western States  
 

The Agreement is for maintenance and inspection of the City’s 4 large generators which will be 
inspected approximately every six months and a report will be compiled.  
 
 F) Approval of Rental Agreement with Rowand Machinery for Street Sweeper 
  
The proposed Street Sweeper Rental Agreement is one that we do yearly each spring for 1-2 
weeks to more efficiently broadcast left behind winter debris from our streets.   

 
 G) Consideration Task Order No. 16-01 with Welch Comer & Associates for New Rathdrum 
Water Production well – See memo and attached documentation in Council Packet. 
  
 H) Consideration of agreement with HMH Engineering for Community Choices Project- 
School Zone Flashing RRFB Crosswalk Signs – The 5 sets of RRFB Solar-Powered Flashing 
School-Zone Crosswalk signs were ordered from Traffic Safety Supply Company in March 2016.  
We anticipate receiving the sign systems by late-April.  We are hoping to begin construction of 
the foundations for each sign by mid-to-late April. 
  
 I) Approval of contract with Chris Hansen for additional cleaning of the Mountain after the 
wind storm – Paper Document may be provided at Council Meeting. 
  

 



3 
 

 J) Approval of Contract with Jerry Mason in regards to Impact Fees- School Zone Flashing 
RRFB Crosswalk Signs – Paper Document may be provided at Council Meeting. 
  
 K) Set the Date for the Budget Public Hearing- Per I.C. 63-802A April 29, 2016 is the last 
day to certify with the County our Annual Budget Public Hearing. 
  

11) Staff Reports 

A) Finance Department- See report in packet 

B) Parks & Recreation- See report in packet 

C) Police Department- See report in packet 

D) Public Works- See report in packet  

12) Mayors Report/Appointments 

The Parks & Recreation Commission and Cemetery Commission are continuing to look for a 
commission member. 

 Child Abuse Prevention Proclamation 
 Appointment for Citizen Development Advisory Committee 

 
 

13) Council Reports 

                                   

14) Adjourn 



   CALENDAR 
April – 2016 

 

 

Apr 13  6:00 pm  Council Meeting 

Apr 14  10:30 am  Senior Center Meeting 

Apr 14  1:30 pm  KMPO  

Apr 18  12:00 pm  Economic Development 

Apr 20  6:00 pm  Planning & Zoning Commission 

April 21  9:00-3:00  AIC Spring Academy 

Apr 21  12:00 pm  Chamber Luncheon 

Apr 26  8:00 am  KCATT 

Apr 26  6:00 pm  Park & Recreation Commission 

Apr 27               5:00 pm  Cemetery Board 

May 3  7:00 am  Jobs Plus Meeting 

May 4  7:00 pm  Historical Society – Old Jail 

May 7  10-Noon  Cemetery Cleanup 

May 9-15  8:00-5:00  City Spring Cleanup  

May 11  6:00 pm  Council Meeting 

May 13  8:00 am  Council Payday 

                            

 

 

“Spring is the time of plans and projects.”  
― Leo Tolstoy, Anna Karenina 

http://www.goodreads.com/author/show/128382.Leo_Tolstoy
http://www.goodreads.com/work/quotes/2507928


  
Page 1 

 
  

 Rathdrum 
                              City Council Minutes                                  

                            March 9, 2016 
                                      6:00 p.m. 
   

   
 
 
Location:  City Council Chamber 
  8047 W. Main Street     
  Rathdrum, ID  83858 
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 

 
Meeting called to order by Mayor Holmes at 6:01 p.m. 

 
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENT:                           Councilor Meckel, Councilor Worthen, Councilor Holmes and 

Mayor Holmes. 
      ABSENT: Councilor Laws 
      STAFF: City Engineer/Public Works Director Jump, City Clerk Halligan, 

Finance Director/Treasurer Taylor, Park & Rec Director Singer, 
Lieutenant Friis and City Attorney Cafferty. 

 
4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Councilor Meckel stated that he called and asked that City Administrator discussion be put 
on the agenda and I want to know why it was not put on the agenda like he requested. 
 
Mayor Holmes stated that he did not want to put it on the agenda yet because I’m not 
ready to discuss it. You guys can add it as a group to the next council meeting.  
 



  
Page 2 

 
  

Mayor Holmes stated I was going to discuss this at the end under Mayor’s Report.  At this 
time we are gathering information as to what the other Cities are looking for and who is 
available. 

 

 
 
Council discussed the new City Administrator position at length. 

 
      Councilor Holmes made a Motion to place the City Administrator on next month’s     

Council agenda so we can talk about this more.  Seconded by Councilor Worthen. 
 
      AYES: Councilor Holmes  
 Councilor Worthen  
 Councilor Meckel 
      NAYES: None 
      ABSENT: Councilor Laws   
 
      Motion Passed by all   
 
5) CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  

A) Special Council Minutes of January 20, 2016 
B)  Regular Council Minutes of February 10, 2016 
C)  Regular and Special Bills as presented 
D)  Approval of the Password Agreement 
E)   Approval of Rental Agreement for a Vibratory Roller 
F) Approval of Avista Electric 2nd Street Light Contract 
G)  Approval of Corbin Crossing South Development Agreement 
 
Finance Director/Treasurer Taylor gave a brief overview of the Consent Calendar.   
 

     Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to approve the consent calendar as presented. Motion 
     seconded by Councilor Worthen. 
 

         AYES: Councilor Meckel 
 Councilor Worthen  
 Councilor Holmes 
         NAYES: None 
         ABSENT: Councilor Laws   
 
        Motion passed by all 

 
                
6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 

 



  
Page 3 

 
  

7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  
(No formal action allowed – 3 minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on 
subsequent agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are 
inappropriate at this time and should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent 
appointment or after tonight’s meeting, if time permitting. Repeated comments of the 
same or similar topic will be considered out of order and not allowed. 
 
 

8) OLD BUSINESS 
 
A) Discussion of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Sponsorship 

 
            City Engineer/Public Works Director gave a brief presentation on the CDBG. 
 
            ACE Hardware is requesting the City of Rathdrum to sponsor an Idaho Community 
            Development Block Grant for public infrastructure improvements in the State 
            Highway 41 public right-of-way, from Boekel Road to approximately 650 feet south, 
            and in the Boekel Road public right-of-way, from State Highway 41 to Ohio Street. 
 

The project costs are approximately $200,000. However, with not yet engaging in     
engineering design efforts, the project costs may range from $150,000 to $300,000. 

 
            Sherri Wastweet 
            Grant Program Administrator 
            Panhandle Area Council (PAC) 
             

There is typically 3.5 million dollars available for Downtown Revitalizations and job      
creation projects.  I don’t know how many other projects are going in.  However, 
because we are not asking for the full maximum amount they look a little better at 
these type of projects.  We are only asking for a grant of 186,000 dollars were as you 
can ask for half a million dollars. 

 
           Councilor Worthen made a MOTION to turn this into a public hearing for the 

Community Development Block Grant for the improvements in the area of Boekel 
Road and State Highway 41. Motion seconded by Councilor Meckel. 

 
             AYES: Councilor Worthen 
 Councilor Meckel  
 Councilor Holmes 
             NAYES: None 
             ABSENT: Councilor Laws   
 
             Motion passed by all 

 



  
Page 4 

 
  

9) PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
A) Application for Improvements in the area of Boekel Road and SH41 

 
      Mayor Holmes opened the Public Hearing 
 
      City Engineer/Public Works Director Kevin Jump gave a brief presentation. 
 

ACE Hardware is requesting the City of Rathdrum sponsor an Idaho Community 
Development Block Grant for public infrastructure improvements in the State 
Highway 41 public right-of-way, from Boekel Road to approximately 650 feet south, 
and in the Boekel Road public right-of-way, from State Highway 41 to Ohio Street.             
 
The City will manage and utilize a combination of CDBG funds, City of Rathdrum 

            General Funds, and in-kind services being provided by the City of Rathdrum to 
      oversee the construction of the public infrastructure improvements. 
 

Sherri Wastweet 
Grant Program Manager   
Panhandle Area Council (PAC) 
 

      With these type of projects Idaho Community Development Block Grant requires two 
Public hearings for every Grant application.  One during the application process, which 
is what we are doing now and then another one if funded during the construction 
process.  They used to like have it midway through construction, now they like 
construction to be 80% or further along before we have the second hearing. 

 
      By agreeing to hire 10 individuals at the new ACE hardware store, they are agreeing to 

51% of them being low to moderate income individuals.  That is what makes this 
project eligible. 

 
There is a Citizen Participation Plan that I believe you are passing tonight.  It has to be   
passed and I will be needing a copy of that as soon as possible signed and the Fair 
Housing Plan Resolution.   Those are the two documents that need to be signed and 
passed before we can move forward with the application. It is due March 21st, 2016 
which is two weeks from Monday.  There will also be a certification form that the 
Mayor will need to sign and it is agreeing to the Uniform Relocation Act.  

 
      Public Testimony 
 
      In Support: 
 
      None 
 



  
Page 5 

 
  

     Neutral: 
 
      None 
 
     Opposing:  
 
      None 
 
     Mayor Holmes closed the Public Hearing.   
 
     Mayor Holmes stated that we will move on to 10A. 

             
10) NEW BUSINESS 
 

A) Consider Resolution for a Citizen Participation Plan for an Idaho Community 
Development Block Grant 
 
If the Rathdrum City Council agrees to sponsor the CDBG application for public 

            infrastructure improvements in the vicinity of SH41 and Boekel Road, then we are 
      required to adopt a Citizen Participation Plan. 

 
           Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to adopt the CDBG application Citizen Participation 

Plan.  Motion seconded by Councilor Holmes. 
 

            AYES: Councilor Meckel 
 Councilor Holmes  
 Councilor Worthen 
             NAYES: None 
             ABSENT: Councilor Laws   
 
             Motion passed by all 

 
B) Consider Resolution for a Fair Housing Plan for an Idaho Community Development 

Block Grant 
 

           Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to approve the CDBG application for Fair Housing.  
Motion seconded by Councilor Worthen. 

 
            AYES: Councilor Meckel 
 Councilor Worthen 
 Councilor Holmes 
            NAYES: None 
            ABSENT: Councilor Laws   
 



  
Page 6 

 
  

            Motion passed by all 
 

C) Approval to purchase easement for Pathway at Highway 41/Boekel Rd 
 

      City Engineer/Public Works Director Kevin Jump gave a brief presentation. 
 
In order to extend the pedestrian pathway, we need to acquire a 15-foot wide 

 easement from the House of Prayer Church. As part of our discussions with the 
church, we have agreed upon a 1-time payment of $ 1,500 for this easement. 
 

          Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to approve the Boekel Rd Pathway extension 
authorizing a one-time payment of $1,500 for the easement and authorize the Mayor 
to sign any documents therefore.  Motion seconded by Councilor Holmes. 

 
            AYES: Councilor Meckel 
 Councilor Worthen 
 Councilor Holmes 
            NAYES: None 
            ABSENT: Councilor Laws   

 
Motion passed by all 
 

D) Approval to purchase right-of-way at Meyer Rd to extend pathway 
 

      City Engineer/Public Works Director Kevin Jump gave a brief presentation. 
 
In order to extend the pedestrian pathway, we need to acquire approximately 5,000 
ft2 of right-of-way from John Kirk. We are in the beginning stages of negotiating the 
purchase of this parcel of right-of-way. 
 
I'm herein seeking Council's authorization to purchase the public right-of-way for an 
amount not-to-exceed $5,000. In addition, because the earthwork activities (slope 
construction for the pathway) will encroach upon the existing fence, we are 
anticipating the need to replace this fence. 
 

           Councilor Worthen made a MOTION that we purchase the easement for the pathway 
on Meyer Rd from Mr. Kirk as explained to us and have the Mayor sign the contract.  
Motion seconded by Councilor Holmes. 

 
            AYES: Councilor Worthen 
 Councilor Holmes 
 Councilor Meckel  
            NAYES: None 
            ABSENT: Councilor Laws   



  
Page 7 

 
  

 
Motion passes by all 
 

 
E) Approval of Tot Lot Equipment Purchase for Roth Park 

 
Park and Recreation Director Eric Singer gave a brief presentation. 
 
We are here tonight to ask the Mayor and Council permission to purchase and 
install new playground equipment at Roth Park. The project was budgeted for and the 
funds for the project will come from Park Improvements. Cost of the playground 
equipment will be $10,140.00 which includes the shipping costs.  

 
Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to approve the Roth Park playground in the amount 
of $10,140.00 to Garrett and Company, Inc. and authorize the Mayor to sign all 
documentation.  Motion seconded by Councilor Holmes. 

 
            AYES: Councilor Meckel  
 Councilor Holmes 
 Councilor Worthen 
            NAYES: None 
            ABSENT: Councilor Laws   

 
Motion passes by all 

 
F) Approval of funding Majestic Park Amphitheatre construction 

 
Park and Recreation Director Eric Singer gave a brief presentation regarding the 
conceptual plan in the Northeast corner of Majestic Park. 
 
This includes the construction and the construction costs of the main facilities in the 
project including a picnic shelter, observation area, stage, dance floor and pathways.  
Other cost estimates included will be irrigation and seeding. 
 
We would like Mayor and Council to allow the Parks $80,000.000 to complete this 
project. This money would come out of the FY 2016 Impact Fees. 
 
We would like permission to move forward to seek bids for each of these sub‐projects 
to make this addition to the park.  

 
Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to approve the Majestic Park NE portion not to 
exceed an estimated construction cost of $90,000.  Motion seconded by Councilor 
Worthen. 

 



  
Page 8 

 
  

            AYES: Councilor Meckel  
 Councilor Worthen 
 Councilor Holmes  
            NAYES: None 
            ABSENT: Councilor Laws   

 
Motion passes by all 

 
11) STAFF REPORTS  

 
A) Finance Reporting 

 
Finance Director/Treasurer Melissa Taylor gave a brief report on some of the things we 
have been doing since last month. 
 

B) Park and Recreation Reporting 
 

Nothing 
 
C) Police Reporting 
 

Nothing 
 

D) Public Works Reporting 
 

City Engineer/Public Works Director gave a brief report on some of their projects. 
 

 Flashing school zone crosswalk signs. We are under contract, we have placed 
the order with the sign people.  Everything seems to be going smoothly.  I do 
need to hire a consultant who is ITD certified in construction and inspection.  
We will have the signs by the end of April and installed by the second or third 
week in May. 

 We are updating our Water Ordinance. We will bring that to Council in April. 

 We are updating our Waste Water Pre-Treatment Program. 

 Rathdrum Mountain – Our landscaper, architect and our surveyor met up on the 
mountain today to talk about what they need to get information wise for a 
Topographic survey. 

 Majestic Park water pressure issue.  Corbin Crossing S is submitting a 
construction plan and as part of that we are asking them to build a separate 16 
inch low pressure water main. 

 The test well on Highway 41 the drilling should take place March 21st. 

 The building we are sitting in, we have roof leaks.  We have had the building 
inspector take a closer look at the building and we have hired a structural 
engineer come in and take an assessment.  We have structural settling in this 



  
Page 9 

 
  

building.  We are preparing to make improvements to the building but we are 
looking at a cost.   

 
 
12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 
 

 
13) COUNCIL REPORTS 

 

 Councilor Meckel – KMPO meeting was cancelled last month so tomorrow is our next 
meeting.  Eric congratulations on your promotion.  I think you will do a great job.  You 
have my full support.  Kevin great job on the Crossing lights. 

 Councilor Worthen – I will be available to be a full time Councilman after June because   
I am retiring teaching school. 

 Councilor Holmes – I would like to make a request to Eric.  The dog park is like a mine 
fill.  No one is picking it up.  If you could maybe have some go out & clean it up. 

 
14) ADJOURN 

 
 Meeting adjourned at 7:46 

 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

                                                                                Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Sherri L Halligan, City Clerk       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 

















 

 

Memo 
To:   City Council 

From:  Staci Armes 

CC:   

Date:  April 7, 2016 

Re:  Prairie Sky Amended Development Agreement 

 

Prairie Sky Phases 2,3,4 and 5 was approved by City Council on December 9,, 2015. 
As part of the process for Preliminary Plats, Prairie Sky Phases 2,3,4 and 5 needs to 
Amend their existing Development Agreement with the City. Hence, the City is 
currently working on completing the Development Agreement for the remaining 98-
lots. Staff has placed the Development Agreement as a consent item but at this time 
staff is trying to finalize the agreement, so no agreement will be within the City 
Council packet.  

The Development Agreement is an agreement with the Developer and the City to 
make sure the Developer is constructing the subdivision as approved by the City 
Council.  

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 



 	 	 	
	 	

 

To:  Mayor and Council   

From: City Clerk Sherri L Halligan 

Date: April 13, 2016  

Re: City Property Surplus 

 
 
 

Mayor & Council: 
 

  The Clerk’s Office would like the following items listed to be declared as surplus.  
 

Police Department 
 

The police department would like to surplus some old and outdated equipment including: 

 Chevrolet Impala 2006 – Vin #2G1WS551869396611 

 4 In‐Car Video System 
 

Public Works 
 

The public works department would like to surplus some old and outdated equipment 
including: 

 6 pallets of concrete meter boxes, 

 Various amounts of scrap brass, aluminum, cast iron and steel 

 

  Sincerely, 

                                                                                                           

Sherri L Halligan 
City Clerk 
City of Rathdrum                                                                                         

 

CITY OF RATHDRUM   
CLERKS OFFICE 



Memo 
To:   City Council 

From:  Staci Armes 

CC:   

Date:  April 7, 2016 

Re:  Urban Renewal District 

 

The Rathdrum Economic Development Committee has been meeting over the last 2 
years researching Urban Renewal Agency/Districts. After much discussion with 
different groups and individuals who have experience with Urban Renewal District’s, 
the Committee asked Staff to prepare a presentation to the City Council to see if the 
City Council would entertain moving forward towards creating an Urban Renewal 
Agency/District.  

At the City Council meeting, Danielle Quade, attorney at Hawley Troxell will be giving 
the presentation and will be available to answer any questions. 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 



City Administrator  

1 

CITY OF RATHDRUM 
CLASS SPECIFICATION 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 

Class Code Number:     Pay Grade:  

FLSA Designation: Exempt   Effective Date: 06/16 

 

Purpose of Class 
Appointed by the Mayor, the City Administrator is responsible for overall administration 

of City business and the oversight and supervision of all City Departments.  
 

Primary Function 
Serves at the pleasure of the Mayor, the City Administrator will develop effective 

working relationships with elected, community, and program officials to ensure 

cooperation and efficient operations.  Ensure the City’s work environment is responsive, 

respectful, value-based, and innovative. The Mayor supervises the position, but 

considerable latitude is granted for the exercise of independent judgment and initiative 

within a general framework of existing policies, laws, ordinances and procedures. The 

principal duties of this class are performed in a general office environment. 

 

Essential Duties and Responsibilities  
 

 Assists the Mayor in conducting the City’s business and performs duties and assumes 

other responsibilities as the Mayor directs or as the ordinances and resolutions of the 

City Council require. 

 Reports regularly to the City Council on the status of City operations and programs.   

 Assures efficient and responsible City operations by providing managerial leadership 

and direction; maintains organizational structure and assists staff in 

professional/organizational development programs.  Ensures compliance and 

completion of major operational objectives, monitors progress and suggests necessary 

corrective action; assigns project and program responsibilities to department heads 

and works with them in developing administrative and departmental goals. 

 Reports to and advises the Mayor and City Council as appropriate, on immediate as 

well as emerging municipal problems. 

 Attends various civic and business meetings on behalf of the City, as the Mayor may 

direct. 

 Directs the preparation of the Council agenda as directed by the Mayor, furnishing 

pertinent documents, reports and briefings as needed. 

 Establishes a climate of high quality public services that are responsive, respectful, 

value-based and innovative. Investigates complaints concerning City facilities and/or 

personnel. 

 Communicates and coordinates regularly with appropriate others to maximize the 

effectiveness and efficiency of interdepartmental operations and activities. 



City Administrator  

2 

 Acts as City’s grant writer by performing research to develop and finalize grant 

proposals and seek potential funding sources. 

 Exercise general supervision over public property under the jurisdiction of the City. 

 

Other Duties and Responsibilities 
 Performs other related duties as required, including special projects at the direction of 

Mayor. 
 

Competency Requirements: 
Knowledge skills, and abilities: 

 Thorough knowledge of the theory, principles and practices of public administration. 

 Thorough knowledge of municipal organization and functions as well as related 

federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations, and special programs. 

 Knowledge of budgeting and fiscal oversight and revenue sources available to 

municipal government. 

 Ability to: 

 Formulate and implement sound administrative and fiscal policy and procedures. 

 Lead and sustain operations of a growing municipality. 

 Learn the inter-workings and inter-relationships of city government operations 

and functions and relationships with other levels and forms of government. 

 Gain and retain effective working relationships with city employees, the City 

Council, the Mayor and other public officials and the community at large. 

 Express ideas effectively, orally and in writing. 

 Administer, manage and supervise all city departments as directed by the Mayor. 

 Perform a wide variety of duties and responsibilities with accuracy and speed 

under the pressure of time-sensitive deadlines; 

 Perform multiple tasks simultaneously, including handling interruptions, and 

return to and complete tasks in a timely manner;  

 Have the ability to write grant proposals and generate grant reports as required;  

 Use logical and creative thought processes to develop solutions according to 

written specifications and/or oral instructions. 

 Use a personal computer for email, spreadsheets, correspondence, and briefing 

preparation. 
 

Acceptable Experience and Training 
 Bachelor’s degree from a four year college or university with major course work in 

business, public administration, or related field, supplemented by course work in 

finance.  An advanced degree or graduate level training is highly desirable. 

 Five years progressively responsible experiencing in supervising or managing local 

government services or closely related experience.  

 Any equivalent combination of experience and training which provides the 

knowledge and abilities necessary to perform the work. 
 



City Administrator  

3 

Essential Physical Abilities 
 Sufficient clarity of speech and hearing, with or without reasonable accommodation, 

which permits the employee discern verbal requests and to communicate effectively 

with the public and other employees on the telephone and in person; 

 Sufficient visual acuity, with or without reasonable accommodation, which permits 

the employee to review, evaluate and prepare a variety of written documents and 

materials. 

 Sufficient manual dexterity, with or without reasonable accommodation, which 

permits the employee to operate a personal computer; Sufficient personal mobility, 

flexibility, strength, and agility, with or without reasonable accommodation, which 

permits the employee to lift up to 20 pounds, to sit and work for an extended period 

of time, work in an office environment and operate a motor vehicle. 

 Sufficient mobility to travel between city buildings, attend meeting at irregular hours. 

 

Selection Factors: 
 

In addition to experience and training above, incumbent should have: 

 

Demonstrated knowledge of municipal finance, economic development, growth 

management, and public works, and law enforcement. 

 

Comprehensive knowledge of effective management principles, practices, and methods. 

 

Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with the Mayor, City 

Council, elected officials, government agencies, other employees, and the general public. 

 

Possess excellent communication and interpersonal skills both orally and in writing and 

possess a demonstrated ability to be a strong leader to City staff, and able to connect well 

with the community. 

 

Ability to develop, organize, and direct comprehensive city-wide goals, objectives, and 

administrative operations. 

 

Ability to manage growth.  Knowledge of the short and long term planning process. 



April 7, 2016 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:   Eric Singer, Rathdrum Parks and Recreation Director 

Re:  Main Street Banners 

Tonight staff will talk about replacing the spring/summer main street banners that are on the light poles 

on Main Street.  The banners that are currently up have gotten worn down and have faded since they 

were purchased over ten years ago.  Another reason for replacing the banners is the majority of the 

businesses that are on the banners are no longer in business or they have moved out of the area.  I 

believe the agreement that was made with the businesses was their sponsorship would last the life span 

of the banner.  If new banners were purchased I would suggest a color other than dark green since our 

holiday banners are dark green.  I think the spring/summer banners go unnoticed because they are so 

similar in color and appearance.     

Tonight staff will show a couple of examples and ideas for a new banner design.  A patriotic banner style 

has been favored so far by staff and the public when we have asked for input.   Patriotic colors would 

stand out and add a nice touch to the downtown area.   

After doing research and checking with several different vendors we have found replacement banners 

that are made of a marine acrylic material called “sunbrella” which is the best material for longevity and 

durability.  The total cost to replace the banners which includes adding banners and hardware to three 

recently added light poles at the east end of Main Street will be $3,057.00   

Each department has agreed to pay $400.00 which will total up to about half of the total amount.  We 

are here tonight to ask the city council to pay the other half out of their discretionary fund.  The 

council’s portion would be $1,457.00.   

 

Thank you 

Eric Singer, Rathdrum Parks and Recreation 

 



BANNER INFO

ARTWORK INFO:

PLACEMENT:

TYPEFONTS USED:

CUSTOMER: PLEASE SIGN & RETURN

ARTWORK READY TO PRINT: 

PANTONE INKS

PAGE: 

FABRIC:

Authorized by

IMPORTANT, PLEASE NOTE: The colors shown on this mock up 
are reasonable representations of customer approved colors. If 
PMS color matches are required, Consort will, with the best tech-
nical methods possible, match PMS colors which may not nec-
essarily be the exact colors represented on this paper mock up.

REVISION 2
DATE:

MOCK UP#:

PRINT DATE:
MASTER #:

JOB NAME:

All designs displayed ©  2016 Consort and/or its customers. Reproduction without expressed written permission is prohibited. 
Consort  reser ves the right to improve ink/fabric colors. Illustrations are provided as reasonable representations.

YES / NO 

1 of 211448.16jfR2

Custom

Imprints are 1” off top hem

ITC Century Bold, ITC Century Book Italic

SIZE: 18”x 36
”HEMS: 3”

SIDES: 2
TRUE SETS? n/a

Sunbrella Jockey Red

4.1.16
City of Rathdrum

White
Pantone 278 C
Pantone 2747 C

2129 Portage Street
Kalamazoo, MI 49001
800.525.6424
269.388.4532
FX: 269.388.2018
www.consort.com
sales@consort.com

Corey Rolfe
Direct Sales Representative

Welcome to
RATHDRUM

EST 1881



BANNER INFO

ARTWORK INFO:

PLACEMENT:

TYPEFONTS USED:

CUSTOMER: PLEASE SIGN & RETURN

ARTWORK READY TO PRINT: 

PANTONE INKS

PAGE: 

FABRIC:

Authorized by

IMPORTANT, PLEASE NOTE: The colors shown on this mock up 
are reasonable representations of customer approved colors. If 
PMS color matches are required, Consort will, with the best tech-
nical methods possible, match PMS colors which may not nec-
essarily be the exact colors represented on this paper mock up.

REVISION 2
DATE:

MOCK UP#:

PRINT DATE:
MASTER #:

JOB NAME:

All designs displayed ©  2016 Consort and/or its customers. Reproduction without expressed written permission is prohibited. 
Consort  reser ves the right to improve ink/fabric colors. Illustrations are provided as reasonable representations.

YES / NO 

2 of 211448.16jfR2

Custom

Imprints are 1” off top hem

ITC Century Bold, ITC Century Book Italic

SIZE: 18”x 36
”HEMS: 3”

SIDES: 2
TRUE SETS? n/a

Sunbrella Pacific Blue

4.1.16
City of Rathdrum

White
Pantone 200 C
Pantone 2757 C

2129 Portage Street
Kalamazoo, MI 49001
800.525.6424
269.388.4532
FX: 269.388.2018
www.consort.com
sales@consort.com

Corey Rolfe
Direct Sales Representative

Welcome to
RATHDRUM

EST 1881



Master Number: 

COREY

STD GROUND

NET 30

1

QTE0073709 

Page: 

Rathdrum ID    83858-9287

 
8047-1 Main Street

City of Rathdrum

Bill To: 

Rathdrum ID    83858-9287

8047-1 Main Street

City of Rathdrum

Ship To: 

Quotation 
Customer #: 

Contact Date: 
Quote #: 

Purchase Order #: 

Terms: 
Requested Ship Date: 

Ship Mode: 

Salesperson: 

4/1/2016

83592

Code Qty/Sqft. Item Description  Price Amount

Tel:
Fax:

Special Discount

 

Consort Display Group

Kalamazoo, MI 49001

Eric SingerAccounts Payable

Tel:
Fax:

(208) 687-0267  Ext. 0000
(208) 687-1818  Ext. 0000

P.O. Box 3597

800.525.6424

E-Mail info@consort.com

Kalamazoo Banner Works
Abstracta 

Display One 

269.388.4532

888.880.6341  (FAX)

U.S.A.
(208) 687-0267  Ext. 0000
(208) 687-1818  Ext. 0000

Podia
Dori Pole







8051

U.S.A.

1836SN3203-SET "Patriot Flag" 18" x 36" Sunbrella Jockey Red - Set          14           $108.00          $1,512.00 

1836SN3201-SET "Blue Patriot" 18" x 36" Sunbrella Pacific Blue - Set          14           $108.00          $1,512.00 

ASV098 Imprint Set Up Banners           2           $100.00            $200.00 

Rathdrum Seal.

Screens for "Welcome to Rathdrum" and City of

 

 

ASV097 Imprint Charge Banners          56             $6.00            $336.00 

  
  

  

  

Sub Total 

Tax 

Quote Total 

$3,560.00 

$0.00 

$3,560.00 

$0.00 Estimated Shipping 

SALES AGREEMENT With my signature, I certify this Quotation fairly represents my desire to purchase these products or services from Consort Display Group.
I am authorized to execute this binding agreement and have read and agree tocomply wtih the following Terms & Conditions: This Quotation is subject to final
price verification and payment arrangements. 50% cash deposit is required for orders over $15,000. Cancelled orders may incur a 15% restock fee. Cancellation
of CUSTOM product is subject to a 25%-100% cancellation fee. A Confirming Order will follow to verify production and shipping dates. Rush charges may apply.
Delivered product must be inspected immediately upon receipt. Failure to notify Consort of ANY quality or quantity dispute within 3 business days of receipt
constitutes a complete waiver of any dispute. Returned merchandise requires a Consort-issued RMA. Restock fees apply.  Shipping, handling and applicable
sales tax added to final invoice.  Product ships FOB Kalamazoo, MI. Expedited shipping is available for an additional charge. MasterCard, VISA, Discover and AmEx
accepted.  Wire transfer is required for all international transactions.

Signature Print Name Date PO# (if any)

www.consort.comQuotations honored for 30 days from Contact Date (above).

Payment accepted in U.S. Dollars ONLY.

U.S. Dollars Only















f:\public works\shared files\ricohscans\utility division\sewer division\memo kj-council - generator maintenance - 3.23.2016.docx 

Memo 
To:   Rathdrum City Council 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  March 23, 2016 

Re:  Generator Maintenance & Inspection 

Attached is an agreement with Western States Equipment for maintenance & 
inspection of the City's 4 large generators, as which are listed on page 2 of the 
agreement.  For this agreement, "maintenance" implies that the Western States will 
inspect each generator approximately every 6 months and prepare an inspection 
report.  Other than annual oil and/or filter replacements, faulty items noted in the 
inspection report(s) will be repaired/replaced outside of the extent of the attached 
agreement at a negotiated cost. 

 
 

 

 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 







f:\public works\shared files\ricohscans\streets general maint\memo kj-council - street sweeper lease - 3.25.16.docx 

Memo 
To:   City Council 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  March 25, 2016 

Re:  Lease of Street Sweeper 

 

As we've done in past years, we are asking for Council's approval to lease a street 
sweeper for 1-to-2 weeks.  The street sweeper allows us to more efficiently 
broadcast left-behind winter debris (sand, salt, etc.). 

We've leased equipment (front loader, street sweeper) from Rowand Machinery in 
previous years. 

 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 









f:\public works\shared files\ricohscans\capital projects\new water well - 2015-16\memo kj - water well - bid phase and construction obs agmt - 4.5.16.docx 

Memo 
To:   File 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  April 5, 2016 

Re:  New Water Production Well 

The attached agreement, between the City of Rathdrum and Welch-Comer & 
Associates, addresses the following items: 

 Bid Phase Services for New Test Well 
 Bid Phase Services for New Well Building 
 Construction Phase Services for New Test Well 
 Construction Phase Services for New Well Building 
 Post-Construction Phase Services for New Well Building and Well Equipment 
 Legal Description for New Well Parcel 

I kindly ask that the City Council approve this agreement.  We will not issue Notice to 
Proceed for this agreement until the results are received for the test well. 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 



Page 1 of 3 
\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2016\Rathdrum, City of\TO 16-01 Rathdrum Well\20160118 Task Order 16-01.docx 

 
 
 
 
Task Order  
 
In accordance with Paragraph 1.01 of the Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 
– Task Order Edition, dated July 14, 1998 ("Agreement"), Owner and Engineer agree as follows: 
 

1. Specific Project Data 

A. Title:    Rathdrum Well Bidding & Construction Phase Services   

B. Description:  

Part 1 – City of Rathdrum (City) desires to complete construction of a  new municipal 
production well. The well is anticipated to be 24 inches in diameter and   
approximately 315 feet in depth.          
After construction, the well will be checked for alignment and test pumped.     
Part 2 – Upon completion of Part 1, the City of Rathdrum (City) desires to complete  
construction of a new well building for the new municipal production well completed in  
Part 1 of this scope. Construction shall consist of a new CMU well building, piping,  
and incidentals.            
Part 3 – Conduct survey work to determine existing property boundary and establish  
limits of new well parcel.         

2. Services of Engineer 

A. Bidding Phase Services 

1) Part 1 and 2: Production Well and New Production Well Building and Equipment 

a) Conduct pre-bid meeting on site with bidders. 

b) Respond to bid questions. 

c) Prepare addenda if necessary 

d) Attend bid opening. 

e) Review and tabulate bids. 

f) Provide written recommendation of award. 

B. Construction Phase Services 

1) Part 1: Production Well 

a) Conduct Pre-Construction Meeting with City and Contractor 

b) Stake location of new well 

c) Review Contractor Submittals 

d) Prepare Contractor Progress Payment Requests 

e) Track actual pay quantities 

f) Review cutting samples for screen design 

g) Visit site as needed during construction 

h) Participate in test pumping 

i) Review alignment tests provided by the contractor 

j) Prepare record drawings and submit to IDEQ 

2) Part 2: New Production Well Building and Equipment 

a) Conduct Pre-Construction Meeting with City and Contractor 

This is Task Order No. 16-01, 
consisting of 3 pages. 



Page 2 of 3 
\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2016\Rathdrum, City of\TO 16-01 Rathdrum Well\20160118 Task Order 16-01.docx 

b) Baseline and Benchmarks: As appropriate, establish baselines, benchmarks 
and offsets for locating the Work which in Consultant’s judgment are necessary 
to enable Contractor to proceed.  

c) Review Contractor Submittals 

d) Prepare Contractor Progress Payment Requests 

e) Track actual pay quantities 

f) Visit site as needed during construction  

g) Participate in start-up 

h) Conduct substantial completion walk through with Contractor and City 

i) Provide written punchlist of any outstanding items. 

j) Provide verification that punchlist items have been completed 

k) Prepare record drawings and submit to IDEQ 

C. Post Construction Phase 

1) Part 1 and Part 2:  New Production Well Building and Equipment 

a) Review Contractor provided O&M submittals 

b) Provide O&M manual for completed facility 

c) Provide assistance as needed during 12 month warranty period. 

D. Right of Way: Establish New Well Parcel 

1) Conduct monument search in the field to determine existing adjacent property 
boundary.  Establish limits of new well parcel. Prepare descriptions for well parcel 
along with an access easement.  Set monuments at new parcel corners, prepare 
and file a record of survey drawing. 

E. Assumptions 

1) Design, Bid and Construction Phase services for the required transmission main to 
connect the new well to the City’s water distribution system are excluded from this 
scope of work but can be added by subsequent task order at the City’s request. 

2) Part 1: Production Well 

a) Well will generally be located 2,600 feet south of Lancaster Road and 600 feet 
west of Highway 41. 

b) Water quality testing lab fees will be paid directly by the City. 

c) Drilling permit will be obtained by Contractor. 

d) Full time Inspection by Engineer’s representative is not required.   

e) Construction contract time shall be less than 60 calendar days. 

3) Part 2: New Production Well Building and Equipment 

a) Sub-consultant fees for electrical and structural sub-consultants are included 
in this scope of services. 

b) Contractor will be responsible for special inspections related to the building 
construction. 

c) Full time Inspection by Engineer’s representative is not required. 

d) Construction contract time shall be less than 180 calendar days. 

3. Owner's Responsibilities 

A. Owner shall have those responsibilities set forth in Article 2 and in Exhibit B.   

4. Payments to Engineer 

A. City shall pay Engineer for services described above as follows: 



Page 3 of 3 
\\wc2014\Admin\CONTRACT\2016\Rathdrum, City of\TO 16-01 Rathdrum Well\20160118 Task Order 16-01.docx 

1) For Basic Services having a Determined Scope-Lump Sum Method of Payment. 
City shall pay ENGINEER for the services identified herein the following Lump Sum 
amounts for each phase: 

Part 1: Production Well 

 Bidding Phase Services   $  4,250 

 Construction Phase Services  $25,200 

Part 2: New Production Well Building and Equipment 

 Bidding Phase Services   $  5,000 

 Construction Phase Services  $38,500 

 Post Construction Phase  $  2,800 

Right of Way:  Establish New Parcel  $  3,600 

  
a) The Lump Sum includes appropriate amounts to account for labor, overhead, 

profit, and Reimbursable Expenses.  Subconsultant charges, if any, are 
INCLUDED in the above. 

b) The portion of the Lump Sum amount billed for ENGINEER’s services will be 
based upon ENGINEER’s estimate of the proportion of the total services 
actually completed during the billing period to the Lump Sum.  

B. Terms of payment are set forth in Article 4 of the Agreement and in Exhibit C. 

5. Terms and Conditions:  Execution of this Task Order by Owner and Engineer shall make it 
subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement (as modified above), which Agreement 
is incorporated by this reference.  Engineer is authorized to begin  

6. The Effective Date of this Task Order is                                  , 2016.   

OWNER:    ENGINEER:
CITY OF RATHDRUM, IDAHO WELCH COMER & ASSOCIATES, INC.
   
By:  By:
   
Name: Vic Holmes Name: Steven B. Cordes, P.E.
   
Title: Mayor Title: Vice-President 
   
   Firm’s Certificate No. C-273
   State of: Idaho
   
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK 
ORDER: 

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER:  

   
Name:  Name: Necia Maiani, P.E. 
   
Title:  Title: Sr. Project Manager 
   
Address: 8047 W. Main Address: 350 E. Kathleen Avenue
 Rathdrum, ID, 83858 Coeur d’Alene, ID 83815
   
E-Mail Address:  E-Mail Address: nmaiani@welchcomer.com
   
Phone: 208-687-0261 Phone: 208-664-9382 
   
Fax: 208-687-2700 Fax: 208-664-5946 

 



f:\public works\shared files\ricohscans\city projects\2015\flashing crosswalk signs\memo kj - school zone flashing rrfb signs - 4.5.16.docx 

Memo 
To:   File 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  April 5, 2016 

Re:  Flashing School-Zone Crosswalk Warning Signs 

As you are aware, we authorized Traffic Safety Supply Company on a materials-only 
contract for 5 new sets of RRFB Solar-Powered Flashing School-Zone Crosswalk 
signs.  This contract is associated with a Community Choices grant that the City of 
Rathdrum was awarded in 2015.  The Community Choices program is a federal-aid 
program and is administered by ITD. 

With the materials-only contract, the City was going to use its own forces to install the 
signs since we have successfully installed 2 previous sets of these same sign 
systems.  Since federal aid is involved, we are required to have our work inspected 
by a ITD-certified inspector.  Therefore, we are herein providing an agreement with 
HMH Engineering to provide these services.  We are seeking Council's approval of 
the attached agreement. 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 



1 
 

  

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
 

 

          

  

LOCAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

 

          

       

Agreement Number 

93947 
 

  

          

  

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ______ day of __________________, 

_______, by and between the CITY OF RATHDRUM, whose address is 8047 W. Main St. 

Rathdrum ID  838589287, hereinafter called the "Sponsor," and HMH, LLC, whose address is 

1302 W Hayden Ave, Hayden, ID, 83835, hereinafter called the "Consultant." 

 

RATIFICATION 

 

The Idaho Transportation Department, representing the Federal Highway Administration on 

all local federal-aid highway projects, is authorized to ratify all agreements for engineering 

services entered into between sponsoring local agencies and their retained consultants.  All 

references to State used hereafter shall denote the Idaho Transportation Department. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

The work covered by this Agreement is for the following project(s): 

 

 

          

      

PROJECT NAME: SH 53 SCHOOL ZONE CROSSINGS, RATHDRUM 

PROJECT NO: A014(333) 

KEY NO: 14333 
 

 

          

   

I.  SUBCONSULTANTS 

 The Sponsor approves the Consultant's utilization of the following Subconsultants: n/a 
 

 

          

    

II.  AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATOR 

 This Agreement shall be administered by Gregory Brands, Staff Engineer; (208) 772-

1274; or an authorized representative. 
 

 

          

   

III. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONSULTANT 

 A. DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

  The Consultant shall provide professional services as outlined in the 

attachment(s) and as further described herein. 

  1. The following attachments are made a part of this Agreement: 

   a. Attachment No. 1A is the Consultant Agreement 

Specifications which are applicable to all agreements. 

 



2 
 

   b. Attachment No. 2 is the negotiated Scope of Work, Cost 

Estimate, and Man-Day Estimate. 

   In the case of discrepancy, this Agreement shall have precedence over 

Attachment No. 2, and Attachment No. 2 shall have precedence over 

Attachment No. 1A. 

  2. Per Diem will be reimbursed at the current approved rates.  These rates 

are listed at http://www.itd.idaho.gov/design/cau/policies/policies.htm. 

 

          

  

IV. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF SPONSOR AND/OR STATE 

 The Sponsor and/or State shall provide to the Consultant, upon request, copies of any 

records or data on hand which are pertinent to the work under the Agreement. 
 

 

          

  

V. TIME AND NOTICE TO PROCEED 

 A. The Consultant shall start work under this Agreement no later than ten (10) 

calendar days from the receipt of the written notice to proceed with the work. 

The Consultant shall complete all work by 6/17/2016. 

 B. The Consultant shall remain available to perform additional work for an 

additional sixty (60) days or until the Agreement is closed out, whichever 

comes first. 
 

 

          

     

VI. BASIS OF PAYMENT 

 A. Payment Basis:  Specific Rates of Compensation (Loaded hourly rates [labor, 

OH & fee] plus direct expenses).  Consultant agrees to accept as full 

compensation for all services rendered to the satisfaction of the State for 

completion of the work, the actual cost or Not-To-Exceed amount of the 

Agreement, whichever is lesser. 

 B. Compensation Amount 

  1. Not-To-Exceed Amount: $5,000.00 

  2. Additional Services Amount: $0.00 

  3. Total Agreement Amount: $5,000.00 

 C. The rates identified in Attachment No. 2 were negotiated and agreed upon by 

both parties to this Agreement.  These rates will be fixed for the period of this 

Agreement. 

 





 
 Page 1 of 11 
Revised October 2015 

          ATTACHMENT NO. 1A 
 

CONSULTANT AGREEMENT SPECIFICATIONS                         
Construction Engineering & Inspection  

 
 

These specifications supplement all Professional and Term agreements for Construction Engineering and 
Inspection services and shall be attached to said agreements. 
 
I. DEFINITIONS 
 

1. Administrator:  Person directly responsible for administering a consultant agreement on 
behalf of the State or a Local Public Agency.  

 
2. Combined Overhead:  The sum of the payroll additives and general administrative overhead 

expressed as a percent of the direct labor cost. 
 
3. Cost:  Cost is the sum of the hourly charge out rate and other direct costs.  
 
4. Cost Plus Fixed Fee:  Cost Plus Fixed Fee is the sum of the payroll costs, combined over-

head, and other direct costs, plus the fixed fee.  
 
5. CPM:  Critical Path Scheduling.  The CPM will list all work tasks, their durations, negotiated 

milestones and their dates, and all State/Local review periods. 
 
6.    Fixed Fee:  A dollar amount established to cover the Consultant's profit and business 

expenses not allocable to overhead.  The fixed fee is based on a negotiated percent of direct 
labor cost and combined overhead and shall take into account the size, complexity, duration, 
and degree of risk involved in the work.  The fee is “fixed,” i.e. it does not change.  If extra 
work is authorized, an additional fixed fee can be negotiated, if appropriate. 

 
7. General Administrative Overhead (Indirect Expenses):  The allowable overhead (indirect 

expenses) expressed as a percent of the direct labor cost.  
 
8. Hourly Charge Out Rate:  The negotiated hourly rate to be paid to the Consultant which 

includes all overhead for time worked directly on the project.  
 
9. Incentive/Disincentive Clause:  Allows for the increase or decrease of total agreement 

amount  paid based on factors established in the agreement.  Normally, these factors will be 
completion time and completion under budget.  

 
10. Lump Sum:  An agreed upon total amount, that will constitute full payment for all work 

described in the Agreement.  
 
11. Milestones:  Negotiated portions of projects to be completed within the negotiated time 

frame.  Normally the time frame will be negotiated as a calendar date, but it could also be 
“working” or “calendar” days.  As many milestones as the Consultant and the State believe 
necessary for the satisfactory completion of the agreement will be negotiated. 

 
12. Not-To-Exceed Amount:  The Agreement amount is considered to be a Not-to-Exceed 

amount, which amount shall be the maximum amount payable and shall not be exceeded 
unless adjusted by a Supplemental Agreement. 

 
13. Other Direct Costs:  The out-of-pocket costs and expenses directly related to the project that 

are not a part of the normal company overhead expense. 
  



 
 Page 2 of 11 
Revised October 2015 

 
14. Payroll Additives:  All payroll additives allocable to payroll costs such as FICA, State 

Unemployment Compensation, Federal Unemployment Compensation, Group Insurance, 
Workmen’s Compensation, Holiday, Vacation, and Sick Leave.  The payroll additive is 
expressed as a percent of the direct labor cost. 

 
15. Payroll Costs  (Direct Labor Cost):  The actual salaries paid to personnel for the time 

worked directly on the project.  Payroll costs are referred to as direct labor cost. 
 
16. State:  Normally “State” refers to the Idaho Transportation Department.  However, in the case 

of Local Sponsor projects, “State” may be interchangeable with “Sponsor”,  “Agreement 
Administrator” or just ”Administrator”. 

 
17. Unit Prices:  The allowable charge out rate for units or items directly related to the project 

that are not a part of the normal overhead expense. 
 
 
NOTE:  All cost accounting procedures, definitions of terms, payroll cost, payroll additives, general 
administrative overhead, direct cost, and fixed fee shall comply with Federal Acquisition Regulations, 
48 CFR, Part 31 and be supported by audit accepted by the State.  

 
 
II. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE 
 

The Consultant agrees that all work performed under this agreement will be performed professionally 
in accordance with the ITD Construction Manual, Standard Specifications for Highway Construction - 
Subsection 105.10 and other appropriate standards.  The Consultant shall be responsible for 
construction engineering and inspection on all tasks assigned (as stated in the Scope of Services) 
when on duty to ensure they are constructed in substantial conformance to the plans, special 
provisions and specifications. 

 
The Consultant shall identify and recommend corrections for any omissions, substitutions, defects and 
deficiencies in the work of the Contractor. 

 
III. AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 The Agreement Administrator will administer this agreement for performance and payment, and will 

decide all questions which may arise as to quality and acceptability of the work, rate of progress, 
definition of work to be performed, and acceptable fulfillment of this Agreement.  The Consultant shall 
address all correspondence, make all requests, and deliver all documents to the Administrator.  The 
Administrator shall be responsible for the timely coordination of all work performed by the State or their 
representatives. 

 
IV. PERSONNEL 
 
 The Consultant shall provide adequate staff of experienced personnel or subconsultants capable of 

and devoted to the successful accomplishment of work to be performed under this agreement. The 
specific individuals or subconsultants listed in the agreement, including Project Manager, shall be 
subject to approval by the State and shall not be removed or replaced without the prior written 
approval of ITD. Replacement personnel submitted for approval must have qualifications, experience 
and expertise at least equal to those listed in the proposal 

 
V. SUBCONSULTANTS 
 
 The Consultant shall have sole responsibility for the management, direction, and control of each 

Subconsultant and shall be responsible and liable to the State for the satisfactory performance and 
quality of work performed by Subconsultants under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  The 
Consultant shall include all the applicable terms and conditions of this Agreement in each  

  



 
 Page 3 of 11 
Revised October 2015 

  
 
 Subconsultant Agreement between the Consultant and Subconsultant, and provide the State with a 

copy of each Subconsultant Agreement prior to the Subconsultant beginning work. No other 
Subconsultant shall be used by the Consultant without prior written consent by the State. 

 
VI. DIRECT COST 

 
It is understood that overtime will be incurred after forty (40) hours of work for this agreement during 
each week.  When the need for overtime has been approved by the Agreement Administrator, the 
overhead rate and fee are not to be applied to the premium time paid. 
 
The out-of-pocket cost and expenses directly related to the project must be pre-approved and agreed 
to, by the Agreement Administrator, prior to receiving any compensation.  Relocation, lodging and Per 
Diem cost will not be allowed for this type of agreement unless agreed and pre-approved by the 
Agreement Administrator.  

 
VII. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AUTHORIZATION 
 

1. A written PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AUTHORIZATION (PSA) will be issued by the State to 
authorize the Consultant to proceed with a specific portion of the work under this Agreement.  
The number of PSAs required to accomplish all the work under this Agreement is one to 
several.  Each PSA will authorize a maximum dollar amount for which the PSA represents.  
The State assumes no obligation of any kind for expenses incurred by the Consultant prior to 
the issuance of the PSA; for any expenses incurred by the Consultant for services performed 
outside the work authorized by the PSA; and for any dollar amount greater than authorized by 
the PSA. 

  
2. It is not necessary for a PSA to be completed prior to the issuance of the next PSA.  The 

Consultant shall not perform work which has not been authorized by a PSA.  When the money 
authorized by a PSA is nearly exhausted, the Consultant shall inform the Administrator of the 
need for the next PSA.  The Administrator must concur with the Consultant prior to the 
issuance of the next PSA. 

 
3. The Agreement amount is lump sum, unit cost, or cost plus fixed fee amount for the 

negotiated services and an additional services amount is set up for possible extra work not 
contemplated in original scope of work.  For the Consultant to receive payment for any work 
under the additional services amount of this Agreement, said work must be performed under a 
PSA issued by the State. Should the State request that the Consultant perform additional 
services, then the scope of work and method of payment will be negotiated.  The basis of 
payment for additional work will be set up either as a Lump Sum or Cost Plus Fixed Fee. 

 
VIII. MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT 
 

The Consultant shall submit to the State a monthly progress report on Form ITD-771, as furnished by 
the State.  

 
The monthly progress report will be submitted by the tenth of each month following the month being 
reported or as agreed upon in the scope of services. 
 
The Agreement Administrator will review the progress report and submit approved billings for payment 
within two weeks of receiving monthly report. 

 
Each progress report shall list billings by PSA number and reference milestones. 

 
  



 
 Page 4 of 11 
Revised October 2015 

IX. PROGRESS AND FINAL PAYMENTS 
 

1. Progress payments will be made once a month for services performed which qualify for payment 
under the terms and conditions of the Agreement.  Such payment will be made based on 
invoices submitted by the Consultant in the format required by the State. The monthly invoice 
shall be submitted by the tenth of each month following the month being invoiced.  

 
Lump Sum 

Progress payments will be made, based on a percentage of the work or milestones 
satisfactorily completed. 

 
Cost Plus Fixed Fee 

The Consultant shall submit a breakdown of costs by each item of work on the 
monthly invoice, and shall show the percent complete of each item of work, each 
milestone and percent complete of the entire Agreement.  Progress payments will be 
made based on the invoiced cost less the fixed fee for the work satisfactorily 
completed for each billing period.  Said payment shall not exceed the percent 
complete of the entire Agreement.  Upon satisfactory completion of each milestone, 
full payment for all approved work performed for that milestone will be made including 
Fixed Fee. 

 
Cost 

The Consultant shall submit a breakdown of costs by each item of work on the 
monthly invoice, and shall show the percent complete of each item of work and 
percent complete of the entire Agreement.  Progress payments will be made based 
on the invoiced cost for the work satisfactorily completed for each item of work.  Said 
payment shall not exceed the percent complete of the entire Agreement.  

 
Direct expenses will be reimbursed at actual cost, not to exceed the current approved rates as 
identified at http://www.itd.idaho.gov/design/cau/policies.htm .   
 
For “Cost Plus Fixed Fee” and “Cost” agreements, invoices must include backup 
documentation to support expenditures as appropriate, and as requested by the Agreement 
Administrator.  Such support may consist of copies of time sheets or cost accounting system 
print-out of employee time, and receipts for direct expenses.  

 
2. The State will make full payment for the value of the services performed which qualify for 

payment. This full payment will apply until 95 percent of the work under each Project 
Agreement or Work Task has been completed.  No further progress payments will be made 
until all work under the individual agreement has been satisfactorily accomplished. 

 
If at any time, the State determines that the work is not progressing in a satisfactory manner, 
the State may refuse to make full progress payments and may withhold from any progress 
payment(s) such sums that are deemed appropriate for unsatisfactory services. 

 
3. Final payment of all amounts retained shall be due 90 days after all work under the 

Agreement has been completed by the Consultant and accepted by the State.  Such final 
payment will not be made until satisfactory evidence by affidavit is submitted to the State that 
all indebtedness incurred by the Consultant on this project has been fully satisfied.  

 
4. Agreements which include an incentive/disincentive clause will normally have the clause 

applied only to the completion of the milestones identified.   
 
5. Payments to Subconsultants 

 
Consultant shall pay each subconsultant for satisfactory performance of its contract items no 
later than twenty (20) calendar days from receipt of each payment the consultant receives 
from the State, in accordance with 49 CFR, Part 26.  The consultant shall return retainage 
payments to each subconsultant within twenty (20) calendar days after the subconsultant’s 
work is satisfactorily completed. 

http://www.itd.idaho.gov/design/cau/policies.htm


 
 Page 5 of 11 
Revised October 2015 

 
Form ITD-2892 (Certification of Payment) shall be filled out by the consultant for each invoice 
and provided to the Agreement Administrator verifying payment to subconsultants.  Upon 
completion of the work, the consultant shall certify total payment to all subconsultants on 
Form ITD-2921 (Certification of Payment Amounts).  Forms will be provided by the State. 

 
 
 
X. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

1. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES 
 

a. The Consultant warrants that they have not: 
 

Employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingent fee, or 
other consideration, any firm or person to solicit or secure this contract, other than a 
bona fide employee of the firm; 

 
agreed, as an expressed or implied condition for obtaining this contract, to employ or 
retain the services of any firm or person in connection with carrying out the contract, 
or; 

 
paid, or agreed to pay, to any firm, organization or person (other than a bona fide em-
ployee of the firm) any fee, contribution, donation, or consideration of any kind for, or 
in connection with, procuring or carrying out the contract. 

 
b.  The State warrants that the above consulting firm, or firm representative, has not 

been required, directly or indirectly as an expressed or implied condition in 
connection with obtaining or carrying out this contract to: 

 
Employ or retain, or agree to employ or retain, any firm or person, or; 
pay, or agree to pay to any firm, person or organization, any fee, contribution, 
donation or consideration of any kind. 
 

2. PROHIBITION AGAINST HIRING PERSONNEL AND WORKING FOR CONTRACTOR 
 

In compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations, (23 CFR, Section 1.33, Conflict of 
Interest), the Consultant agrees that no one in their employ will work on a part time basis 
under this Agreement while also in the full-time employ of any Federal Agency or the State, 
without the written consent of the public employer of such person.  The Consultant agrees that 
no one in their employ under any circumstances shall perform any services for the contractor 
on the construction of this project.   This includes employees who leave the Consultant’s 
employment. 
 

3. CHANGES IN WORK 

 
All changes in work shall conform to one or more of the following conditions and in no 
instance shall such change in work be undertaken without written order or written approval of 
the State. 

 
a. Increase in the work required by the State due to unforeseen circumstances. 
b.  Revision in the work required by the State subsequent to acceptance of such work at 

the appropriate conference or after revision of such work as outlined at said 
conference. 

c.  Items of work which are beyond the scope of intent of this Agreement and pre-
approved by the State.  

   d.  Reduction in the work required by the State due to unforeseen circumstances.    
 

An increase in compensation shall not result from underestimating the complexity of the work.   
 



 
 Page 6 of 11 
Revised October 2015 

Adjustment in compensation for either an increase or reduction in work shall be on a 
negotiated basis arrived at by mutual agreement between the State and the Consultant.  
During such negotiations the State may examine the documented payrolls, transportation and  
subsistence costs paid employees actively engaged in the performance of a similar item or 
items of work on the project, and by estimated overhead and profit from such similar items or 
items of work. 

 
Said mutual agreement for a negotiated increase or reduction in compensation shall be 
determined prior to commencement of operations for an increase in a specific item or items of 
work.  In the case of State order for nonperformance a reduction in the specific item or items 
of work will be made as soon as circumstances permit. In the event that a mutual agreement 
is not reached in negotiations for an increase in work, the State will use other methods to 
perform such item or items of work. 

 
The mutually agreed amount shall be covered by a Supplemental Agreement and shall be 
added to or subtracted from the total amount of the original Agreement.   

 
Adjustment of time to complete the work as may pertain to an increase or a reduction in the 
work shall be arrived at by mutual agreement of the State and the Consultant after study of 
the change in scope of the work. 
 

4. DELAYS AND EXTENSIONS 
 

a.  Extensions of time may be granted for the following reasons: 
 

i.  Delays in major portions of the work caused by excessive time used in 
processing of submittals, delays caused by the State, or other similar items 
which are beyond the control of the Consultant. 

 
ii. Additional work ordered in writing by the State. 

 
b.  Extensions of time will not be granted for the following reasons: 

 
i. Underestimating complexity of work.     

 
ii.  Redoing work rejected by the State. 

 
5. TERMINATION 

 
The State may terminate or abandon this Agreement at any time upon giving notice of 
termination hereof as hereinafter provided, for any of the following reasons:    

 
a. Evidence that progress is being delayed consistently below the progress indicated in 

a schedule of operations given to the State at meetings and conferences herein 
provided for. 

 
b. Continued submission of sub-standard work. 
 
c. Violation of any of the terms of conditions set forth in the Agreement, other than for 

the reasons set forth in a and b above. 
 
d. At the convenience of the State. 

 
Prior to giving notice of termination for the reasons set forth in a and b above, the State shall 
notify the Consultant in writing of any deficiencies or default in the performance of the terms of 
this Agreement, and said Consultant shall have ten (10) days thereafter in which to correct or 
remedy any such default or deficiency, and upon their failure to do so within said ten (10) 
days, or for the reasons set forth in 3 above, such notice of termination in writing shall be  

  



 
 Page 7 of 11 
Revised October 2015 

given by the State. Upon receipt of said notice the Consultant shall immediately discontinue 
all work and service unless directed otherwise, and shall transfer all documents pertaining to 
the work and services covered under this Agreement, to the State.  Upon receipt by the State 
of said documents, payment shall be made to the Consultant as provided herein for all 
acceptable work and services. 
 

6. DISPUTES 
 

Should any dispute arise as to performance or abnormal conditions affecting the work, such 
dispute shall be referred to the Director of the Idaho Transportation Department or his duly 
authorized representative(s) for determination.  

 
Such determination shall be final and conclusive unless, within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
the decision Consultant files for arbitration with the American Arbitration Association (AAA).  
Consultant agrees that any arbitration hearing shall be conducted in Boise, Idaho. Consultant 
and State agree to be bound by the decision of the arbitration.  Expenses incurred due to the 
arbitration will be shared equally by the parties involved. 

 
7. ACCEPTANCE OF WORK 

 
a. The Consultant warrants that all work submitted shall be in accordance with good 

professional practices and shall meet tolerances of accuracy required by State 
practices and procedures.  

 
b. Acceptance of the work shall not constitute a waiver of any of the State's rights under 

this agreement or in any way relieve the consultant of any liability under their 
warranty or otherwise.  

 
c. It is understood by the Consultant that the State is relying upon the professional 

expertise and ability of the Consultant in performance of this contract.  Any 
examination of the Consultant’s work product by the State will not be considered 
acceptance or approval of the work product which would relieve the Consultant for 
any liability or expense.   

 
 Acceptance or approval of any portion of Consultant’s work product by the State or 

payment, partial or final, shall not constitutes a waiver of any rights the State may 
have against the Consultant.  The Consultant shall respond to the State’s notice of 
any error or omission within twenty four hours of receipt, and give immediate 
attention to any corrections to minimize any delay to the construction contract.   

 
 If the Consultant discovers errors or omissions in its work, it shall notify the State 

within seven days of discovery.  Failure of the Consultant to notify the State shall be 
grounds for termination of the agreement.   

 
The Consultant’s liability for damages incurred by the State due to negligent acts, 
errors or omissions by the Consultant in its work shall be borne by the Consultant. 
Increased construction costs resulting from errors, omissions or negligence in 
Consultant’s work product shall not be the Consultant’s responsibility unless the 
additional construction costs were the result of gross negligence of the Consultant. 
 

8. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 

All material acquired or produced by the Consultant in conjunction with this project, shall 
become the property of, and be delivered to, the State without restrictions or limitations of 
their further use.  However, in any case, the Consultant has the right to make and retain  

  



 
 Page 8 of 11 
Revised October 2015 

copies of all data and documents for project files.   All material acquired or produced by the 
Consultant under this contract may be public records under the Idaho Public Records Act.  
Reference Idaho Code Section 74-102(13). 

 
 

9. INDEMNITY 
 

Concerning claims of third parties, the Consultant and the State to the extent the State may do so 
will indemnify, save harmless and defend each other from the damages of and against any and all 
suits, actions, claims or losses of every kind, nature and description, including costs, expenses and 
reasonable attorney fees that may be incurred by reason of any negligent act, error or omission of 
the Consultant or the State in the prosecution of the work which is the subject of this Agreement. 
Concerning claims of the State, the Consultant shall assume the liability and responsibility for 
negligent acts, errors or omissions caused by the Consultant or their agents or employees to the 
assignments completed under this Agreement, to the standards accepted at the time of work, and 
until one (1) year after the project construction has been completed.  The State shall have until that 
time to give the consultant notice of the claim. 

 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Consultant shall not be 
responsible for claims arising from the willful misconduct or negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions of the State for contamination of the project site which pre-exist the date of this 
Agreement or subsequent Task Authorizations.  Pre-existing contamination shall include but 
not be limited to any contamination or the potential for contamination, or any risk to 
impairment of health related to the presence of hazardous materials or substances.  The State 
agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Consultant from and against any claim, 
liability or defense cost related to any such pre-existing contamination except for claims 
caused by the negligence, or willful misconduct of the Consultant. 
 
The Consultant, its agents, officials, employees, and subconsultant will be authorized 
representatives for the State and shall be protected against all suits, actions, claims or cost, 
expenses and attorney fees in accordance with Subsection 107.10 of the Standard 
Specifications for Highway Construction 1999; and shall be protected against all personal 
liability in accordance with Subsection 107.13 of the Standard Specifications for Highway 
Construction 1999. 
 

10. INSURANCE 
 

The Consultant, certifying it is an independent contractor licensed in the State of Idaho, shall 
acquire and maintain commercial general liability insurance in the amount of $500,000.00 per 
occurrence, and worker compensation insurance in accordance with Idaho Law.   
 
Regarding workers’ compensation insurance, the consultant must provide either a certificate 
of workers’ compensation insurance issued by an insurance company licensed to write 
workers’ compensation insurance in the State of Idaho as evidence that the consultant has a 
current Idaho workers’ compensation insurance policy in effect, or an extraterritorial certificate 
approved by the Idaho Industrial Commission from a state that has a current reciprocity 
agreement with the Idaho Industrial Commission. 
 
The Consultant shall provide the State with certificates of insurance within ten (10) days of the 
Notice to Proceed. 

 
11. LEGAL COMPLIANCE 

 
   The Consultant at all times shall observe and comply with all Federal, State and local laws, 

by-laws, safety laws, and any and all codes, ordinances and regulations affecting the work in 
any manner.  The Consultant agrees that any recourse to legal action pursuant to this agree-
ment shall be brought in the District Court of the State of Idaho, situated in Ada County, Idaho. 

  



 
 Page 9 of 11 
Revised October 2015 

 
12. SUBLETTING 

 
The services to be performed under this Agreement shall not be assigned, sublet, or 
transferred except by written consent of the State.  Written consent to sublet, transfer or 
assign any portions of the work shall not be construed to relieve the Consultant of any 
responsibility for the fulfillment of this Agreement or any portion thereof. 

 
13. PERMITS AND LICENSES 

 
The Consultant shall procure all permits and licenses, pay all charges, fees, and taxes and 
give all notices necessary and incidental to the due and lawful prosecution of the work. 
 

 14. PATENTS 
 

The Consultant shall hold and save the State and its agents harmless from any and all claims 
for infringement by reason of the use of any patented design, device, material process, 
trademark, or copyright. 

 
15. CIVIL RIGHTS ACT 

 
During the performance of work covered by this Agreement, the Consultant for themselves, 
their assignees and successors in interest agree as follows:    

 
a. Compliance With Regulations. 
 The Consultant shall comply with all regulations of the United States Department of 

Transportation relative to Civil Rights, with specific reference to Title 49 CFR Part 21, 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended, and Title 23 CFR Part 230 as 
stated in the ITD EEO Special Provisions and Title 49 CFR Part 26 as stated in the 
appropriate ITD DBE Special Provisions.  
(http://www.itd.idaho.gov/civil/pdf/eeocc/dbesprgn.pdf) 

 
b. Nondiscrimination.  

The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by them during the term of this 
Agreement, shall not in any way discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment; subcontractor or solicitations for subcontract including procurement of 
materials and equipment; or any other individual or firm providing or proposing 
services based on race, color, sex, national origin, age or handicap/disability. 

 
c. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and 

Equipment.  
In all solicitations, either by bidding or negotiation, made by the Consultant for work 
or services performed under subcontract, including procurement of materials and 
equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be made  
aware by the Consultant of the obligations of this Agreement and to the Civil Rights 
requirements based on race, color, sex, national origin, age or handicap/disability. 

 
d. Information and Reports. 

The Consultant shall provide all information and reports required by regulations 
and/or directives and sources of information, and their facilities as may be determined 
by the State or the appropriate Federal Agency. The Consultant will be required  to 
retain all records for a period of three (3) years after the final payment is made under 
the agreement. 

 
e. Sanctions for Noncompliance. 

 
In the event the Consultant or subconsultant is in noncompliance with the EEO 
Special Provisions, the State shall impose such sanctions as it or the appropriate 
Federal Agency may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

  

http://www.itd.idaho.gov/civil/pdf/eeocc/dbesprgn.pdf


 
 Page 10 of 11 
Revised October 2015 

  

 Withholding of payments to the Consultant until they have achieved 
compliance;  

 

 Suspension of the agreement, in whole or in part, until the consultant or 
subconsultant is found to be in compliance, with no progress payment being 
made during this time and no time extension made;  

 

 Cancellation, termination or suspension of the Agreement, in whole or in 
part;  

 

 Assess against the consultant’s final payment on this agreement or any 
progress payments on current or future Idaho Federal-aid Projects an 
administrative remedy by reducing the final payment or future progress 
payments in an amount equal to 10% of this agreement or $7,700, whichever 
is less. 

 
f. Incorporation of Provisions.  

The Consultant shall include the provisions of paragraphs a through e in every 
subcontract of $10,000 or more, to include procurement of materials and leases of 
equipment unless exempt by regulations, orders, or directives pursuant thereto.  The 
Consultant shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as 
the State or the appropriate Federal Agency may direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance. In the event the Consultant 
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier 
as a result of such direction, the Consultant may request the State to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interest of the State, and in addition, the Consultant may 
request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interest of the 
United States. 

 
16. INSPECTION OF COST RECORDS 

 
The Consultant shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records and other 
evidence pertaining to costs incurred on the project.  They shall make such data available for 
inspection, and audit, by duly authorized personnel, at reasonable times during the life of this 
Agreement, and for a period of three (3) years subsequent to date of final payment under this 
Agreement, unless an audit has been announced or is underway; in that instance, records must be 
maintained until the audit is completed and any findings have been resolved.  Failure to provide 
access to records may affect payment and may constitute a breach of contract.  

 
 
17. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER 

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 
 

By signing this document the Consultant certifies to the best of his knowledge and belief that 
except as noted on an attached Exception, the company or its subcontractors, material 
suppliers, vendors or other lower tier participants on this project: 

 
a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible 

or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or 
agency; 

 
b. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had 

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense 
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain or performing a public (Federal, 
State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal 
or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, 
falsification or destruction of records making false statements, or receiving stolen 
property; 

 



 
 Page 11 of 11 
Revised October 2015 

c. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
government entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses 
enumerated in paragraph (b) of this certification; and 

 
d. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or 

more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.  
 

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

 
 NOTE: Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of award, but will be considered in 

determining Consultant responsibility.  For any exception noted, indicate to whom it applies, 
initiating agency and dates of action. Providing false information may result in criminal 
prosecution or administrative sanctions. 

 
18.  CERTIFICATION CONCERNING LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 

 
By signing this document, the Consultant certifies to the best of their knowledge and belief 
that: 

 
a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 

undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding 
of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal 
loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, 
renewal, amendment or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan or 
cooperative agreement. 

 
b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to 

any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress or an employee 
of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan or 
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-
LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in accordance with its instructions. 

 
 
The Consultant also agrees that he or she shall require that the language of this certification 
shall be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed $100,000, and that all such sub-
recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

 
 19. EMPLOYEE ELIGIBILITY 
 

The Consultant warrants and takes the steps to verify that it does not knowingly hire or 
engage persons not authorized to work in the United States; and that any misrepresenta-tion 
in this regard or any employment of person not authorized to work in the United States 
constitutes a material breach and shall be cause for the imposition of monetary penalties up to 
five percent (5%) of the contract price, per violation, and/or termination of its contract. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR CONSTRUCTION  

ENGINEERING & INSPECTION (CEI) SERVICES 

DATE: 02/26/2016 

Project Name: 14333 SH53 School Zone Crossing, Rathdrum 

KEY NO.: 14333 

This scope of work is to provide Construction Engineering, and Inspection (CEI) Services limited to 

contract administration, inspection, materials sampling, and project office documentation under the 

general direction of the assigned Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) Resident Engineer, for 

construction of the SH53 School Zone Crossing project located in Rathdrum, Idaho. HMH 

Engineering (HMH) intends to provide the ITD with experienced administration, 

inspection/sampling personnel for this project. Through this contract, HMH will inspect and 

document to the approved local standards documented in the approved Materials Memorandum 

17A.  

HMH's role is limited to the scope of services described herein and is working under the authority of 

the ITD. HMH shall not have the authority to modify the Contract Documents, scope of Contractor's 

Work, performance times, or payment to the Contractor. The ITD is responsible for authorizing all 

changes to the Contract Documents, approving all payments to the Contractor, and final acceptance 

of the Work. 

Project Schedule - HMH proposes to implement its services within the following schedule: The 

scope of work for this project will run in accordance with the contractor's submittal and 

construction schedule. It is anticipated that HMH will be engaged in CEI services from April, 

2016 through July, 2016 based on the anticipated construction schedule and contract documents. 

Additional compensation will be considered and negotiated in a mutually agreeable manner with 

HMH for additional work that may result due to schedule impacts beyond our control. 

The following tasks represent the individual services that are to be provided by HMH under this 

agreement:  

PRIMARY TASKS: 

1. Construction Administration- HMH will provide the qualified personnel necessary to

administer the Plans, Special Provisions, and Specifications of the project for acceptance by the

ITD. The following sub-tasks represent a partial list of the activities necessary to administer the

contract.

1.1. Submittal Log & Minimum Testing Requirements (MTR's) - HMH will develop a list of 

required submittals for the project prior to start of construction and will also track and 

maintain a log of shop drawings and submittals, and encourage reviewers to complete their 

review in a timely manner. Deficiencies will be promptly reported to ITD and the City. 

HMH will also develop the MTR list for the project prior to start of construction. This 

information will be used to track the materials testing required on the project and 

coordination of the testing lab responsible for processing of samples and reporting results.  

Attachment No. 2



 

       Performance Assumptions: 

 

i. Minimum Testing Requirements (MTR's) will be prepared for review and 

approval of the Resident Engineer who will coordinate with the ITD 

Materials Engineer. 

 

1.2. Filing & Records Verification - Project files will be maintained at HMH's office in 

Hayden, Idaho. Copies of requested information will be forwarded to the Resident 

Engineer. Periodic checks of the files may occur by the ITD during the project to check 

that records are being accurately kept and the filing system is up to date.  

 

                Performance Assumptions: 

i. Maintain project filing system. 

ii. Compile testing and certification information to MSR- The office 

assistant will keep current material summary reports for verification of 

pay estimate quantities. 

iii. Maintain all Correspondence documents.  At project close-out, 

Correspondence documents will be submitted. 

 

1.3. Materials Certifications- Certifications, as required by bid item, will be requested for 

certain materials incorporated into the project. No materials will be accepted for payment 

until the certifications are received and reviewed for acceptance. 

 

1.4. Contract Submittal Review- Contract submittals will be reviewed as necessary. It is 

understood that all interpretations and clarifications will be directed to the Resident 

Engineer and the Design Engineer of Record as necessary.    

        Performance Assumptions: 

i. Traffic Control Plans - Contractor Submitted Traffic Control Plans will be 

reviewed for compliance with MUTCD and ITD specifications. 

ii. Contractor concrete mix designs will be processed and approved through 

coordination with the Resident Engineer and ITD’s Materials Engineer per 

the QA Manual requirements, in conformance with the Memo 17A. 

iii. HMH will check items found on the ITD Qualified Products List before 

they are incorporated into the project. 

 

1.5. Monthly Invoicing – Monthly invoices of HMH labor will be submitted to the 

Resident Engineer for review and processing each month.  The CONSULTANT 

shall formally notify the Agreement Administrator upon reaching 85% of the 

expended contract amount. 

 

2. Project Inspection - Inspection will be performed by HMH staff which are qualified per ITD QA 

Manual requirements, and currently certified. A spread sheet with qualifications and certifications 

will be prepared and maintained to track full compliance with ITD, WAQTC, and IQP 

requirements. 

 

2.1. Inspector Diaries - Periodic reports on ITD forms will be prepared to record the 

Contractor's hours on the site, weather conditions, daily activities, observations in 

general, and specific observations in more detail as the case of observing test 

procedures. Project diaries will be maintained in the project files. Certificates of 



 

inspections, tests, and approvals required by the Contract Documents will be 

received and reviewed.  

 

2.2. Identify and Recommend Corrections- Perform construction site inspections of the 

Contractor activities. Identify non-compliant work including any omissions, 

substitutions, defects and deficiencies in the work of the Contractor discovered by 

HMH during project inspection and document with recommendations to the 

Resident Engineer. 

 

2.3. Pay Quantity Collection- Pay documents will be provided and quantity 

measurements will be checked for accuracy. 

 

3. Materials Sampling & Testing- HMH will provide and coordinate materials sampling and 

testing services as required by ITD QA Manual, and Memo 17A and the Resident Engineer. The 

following items represent the major sub-tasks required for administering this portion of the 

agreement. HMH may utilize the services of Allwest Testing (SUBCONSULTANT) to provide 

materials sampling and testing services during peak times. 

 

3.1. Quality Assurance and Verification Sampling & Testing- Sampling & Testing will 

be performed according to ITD Quality Assurance (QA) Manual and Construction 

Contract requirements including verification and acceptance sampling as specified 

by the QA Manual. Sampling of component materials and completed work items 

will be performed to verify that the materials and workmanship incorporated in the 

project are in substantial conformity with the plans, specifications, and contract 

special provisions. HMH will meet the minimum sampling frequencies per the QA 

Manual MTR's or as directed by the Resident Engineer. HMH/Allwest will provide 

sampling and testing field equipment and sample containers. 

 

4. Project Close-Out & Record Drawings - HMH will track changes and deviations from the plans 

and review the contractor’s As-Built drawings.  At the completion of the project, marked 

drawings will be submitted to ITD.  At project close-out, all records will be finalized and quantity 

calculations verified.  A final package of records will be submitted to the Resident Engineer for 

review and acceptance.  

 

4.1. Verify that necessary documents have been received for submission of contractor's 

affidavit of payment. 

 

4.2. Promptly conduct an inspection after notice from the Contractor that the entire work 

is ready for its intended use, in the company of the Resident Engineer and the 

Contractor, to determine if the work is Substantially Complete. Develop a punch list 

for the completion of the work prior to final acceptance or substantial completion 

where required. If there are no objections from the ITD, HMH will deliver a 

certificate of substantial completion to the Resident Engineer and the Contractor. 

 

4.3. Participate in a final inspection, to include representatives from the ITD, to 

determine if the completed work by the contractor is acceptable so that the ITD may 

recommend in writing, final payment to the Contractor.  

 

 



 

4.4. HMH will review "as built" record plans received from the Construction Contractor. 

HMH will forward to the ITD record plans showing appropriate record information 

based on project annotated documents received and deemed acceptable from the 

Contractor. 

 

5. Professional Service Fee- HMH will invoice the Resident Engineer for professional labor and 

reimbursable expenses as described in this scope of work, and cost estimate, and will bill only for 

the efforts actually expensed to complete the project in accordance with the provisions of the 

agreement for this work. 

 

The fee estimate, level-of-effort projections, and schedule assumptions represent HMH’s 

professional judgment.  They are presented to allow a review of our approach.  As we initiate 

activities, it may become apparent some modifications to this proposal are necessary due to changes 

in the contractor’s schedule.  HMH will advise the Resident Engineer of such issues and any fee 

and/or schedule impact prior to implementing revised activities. 

6. Key Understandings-  

 

6.1. All work will be under the supervision of the Resident Engineer or his assigned 

representative. 

 

 

 



3/22/2016

HMH Engineering, llc

Project Name: 14333 SH53 School Zone Crossing, Rathdrum

ITD Key No. 14333

Task Description

Project 

Manager: 

M. Hall

Project 

Coordinator/ 

Inspector: Pat 

Conro

Materials 

Testing: 

Wendy 

Brondt

Office 

Assistance: 

C. Redline  Total Labor 

Hours 

1 CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION

1.1 Submittal Log and MTR's 0.5 1                      2 

1.2 Filing & Records Verification 2                      2 

1.3 Materials Certifications 0.5 4                      5 

1.4 Contract Submittal Review 1 2                      3 

1.5 Monthly Invoicing 0.5 1.5                      2 

Subtotal 2.5 9 1.5                    13 

2 PROJECT INSPECTION

2.1 Inspector  Diaries 2 20                    22 

2.2 Identify and Recommend Corrections 1                      1 

2.3 Pay QTY Collection/Documents 0.5 1                      2 

Subtotal 2.5 22                    25 

3 MATERIALS SAMPLING

3.1 QA and Verification Sampling and Testing 0.5 2 20                    23 

Subtotal 0.5 2 20                    23 

4 PROJECT CLOSEOUT

4.1 Document Verification 0.5 1                      2 

4.2 Substantial Completion Inspection 1 2                      3 

4.3 Final Inspection 1 1                      2 

4.4 Record Plans 0.25 1                      1 

Subtotal 2.75 5                      8 

Total Labor Hours 8.25 38 20 1.5                    68 

HMH ENGINEERING



HMH Engineering, llc

Project Name: 14333 SH53 School Zone Crossing, Rathdrum

ITD Key No. 14333

A. SUMMARY OF MAN-HOUR COSTS 2.3574

Man-Hrs Raw Rate Loaded Rate Cost

1 Project Manager: M. Hall 8.25 @ $47.12 $111.08  = 916.42$            

2 Project Coordinator/ Inspector: Pat Conro 38 @ $26.00 $61.29  = 2,329.11$         

Materials Testing: Wendy Brondt 20 @ $23.00 $54.22 1,084.40$         

Office Assistance: C. Redline 1.5 @ $25.00 $58.94 88.40$              

Total Labor Hours 67.75

TOTAL DIRECT SALARY COST  = 4,418.33$         

B. PAYROLL, FRINGE BENEFIT COSTS & OVERHEAD 110.48%

C. NET FEE 12.0%

TOTAL PAYROLL HMH  = 4,418.33$         

D SUBCONSULTANTS

Allwest

-$          

C. OUT-OF-POCKET EXPENSE 

Overtime * hrs = -$          

E. DIRECT EXPENSES
520.00$  =      394.40$       

* Overtime estimate for peak construction

TOTAL = $4,813



HMH Engineering, llc

Project Name: 14333 SH53 School Zone Crossing, Rathdrum

0

ITD Key No. 14333

DIRECT EXPENSES

PM Field Trips (From CDA) 3

Inspector Trips (From CDA) 10

Quality Control Trips (From CDA) 5

Total # of Trips from CDA 18 Trips

Average Miles per Trip CDA (Field Personnel) 20 Miles 360

Cost per Mile 0.540$     

Total Mileage Cost (Field Personnel) 194.40$     

Miscellaneous Direct Expense
Misc. Copies / Mailings- rebar to Boise 200.00$     

Allwest Concrete Cylinder Breaks

Total Misc. Cost 200.00$     

Total Direct Expense 394.40$     



1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

March/April 2016 

Finance & Administration 

 

CURRENT ACTIVITY 

 

1. New Utility Accounts – 20 – Closed  - 23 

2. Cemetery –  Burials - None 

3. Normal Monthly Activity (Utility Bills/Customer 

Service/Payables/Payroll/General Ledger) 

4. Human Resource functions- Benefits Management-Sherri is 

attending training later this month 

5. Website & Facebook updates 

6. Council meeting preparation 

7. Attended Mountain View High School Reverse Job Fair 

8. Department Head Meeting & Staff Meeting Coordination 

9. Working on Electric Franchise Agreement with Avista 

10. Finalizing City Administrator Job Description 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 



   Mayor and City Council Report 
For Regular Meeting on April 13, 2016 

 
RATHDRUM PARKS, RECREATION, & CEMETERY DEPARTMENT 

Eric Singer, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
 

Recreation Programs through April 8th, 2016  
      

 Spring Soccer Report.  Spring Soccer starts on April 9th.  We have a total of 50 teams in the program.  
Games will be every Saturday at Stub Meyer Park and Thayer Park.   

 Mayor’s Cup Golf Tournament Update.  Staff is in the process of collecting prizes and sponsorships.  
We haven’t had a lot of registrations yet but it is still very early.   

 
Community Events 

 

 The first Annual Community Easter Egg Hunt was held on Saturday March 26th at Majestic Park.    I 
would estimate that we had between 400‐500 kids in the park.  It was our first year running this event 
and it was very successful and was very well attended. The Rathdrum American Legion helped plan 
and coordinate the event and they did an outstanding  job.   This year we bought 6,000 eggs and  I 
would like to purchase 10,000 eggs next year.  Since it was our first year our staff will have a follow‐
up meeting to discuss what changes if any we will make next year.   

 The Park and Recreation staff is also prepping for the annual Youth Fishing Derby.  The event will 
be held on Saturday June 11th at City Park.   

 Staff  is  in the process of getting the Concert  in the Park contract signed for the 2016 summer 
concert series.   

 
Park Activities 

 Park staff is in the process of getting bid packages finalized for the Majestic Park amphitheater 
area.  Staff expects to start construction by the middle of April.  

 Staff has taken several park reservations for the summer.  

 Park staff has started servicing mowers and equipment for the summer.  

 Park staff is currently designing and getting prices for new banners on Main Street.   
 

Cemetery 

 Cemetery Clean‐up Day is on May 7th at 10 a.m.  

 The New Niche Wall is scheduled to be delivered on Wednesday June 1st.  Staff is currently 
getting the site ready for delivery.   

 
Parks and Recreation Commission 

 Staff  reported  that  both  the Majestic  Park  Concept  Plan  and  the  Roth  Park  Playground 
equipment was approved at last month’s council meeting.  Playground equipment has been 
ordered and should be arriving soon.  

 
Administration 

Nothing to Report 
 



 

f:\council packets\fy15-16\april\doc\public works staff report.docx 

Pa
ge
1	

 
PUBLIC WORK'S STAFF REPORT 

Public Works Department  

April 4, 2016 
 

 
1. Public Projects 

a. Sewer/Water Master Plans and Policy Update: The City Council adopted the 
Water System Master Plan, Sanitary Sewer Master Plan and Basic Utility 
Policies.  With legal staff input, we are in the process of reviewing and revising 
our city ordinances so that they better reflect our expectations.  City Staff has 
prepared a draft water system ordinance.  Legal staff has provided comments to 
the draft ordinance.  Standard Details for water infrastructure have been drafted 
and have been circulated for internal staff review.   

b. BNSF Railway - 2nd set of Tracks:  On 11.6.2014, ITD, BNSF, Kootenai County 
Sheriff's Department and the City of Rathdrum met to discuss BNSF Railway 
crossing at Mill Street and the future paralleling set of tracks through Rathdrum.  
BSNF has asked that Rathdrum identify our water main crossings, as BNSF will 
require us to extend the protective steel casing under the limits of the new 
proposed set of rail.  We have pot-holed 4 of the 5 locations and are compiling 
our collection information so that we can provide it to BNSF.  BNSF has informed 
us that any water line casing extensions need to be completed by the end of 
2015.  We anticipate that there is 1 water main crossing which will need to be 
modified. 

  BNSF mentioned their intentions of making improvements to SH53 (NB right-turn 
lane extension, SB left-turn lane extension, extension of NB travel lane).  The 
placement of the 2nd set of tracks, thru the Mill Street intersection, should close 
Mill Street for 1-day (per BNSF).  As recently as September 2015, BNSF advised 
us that they intend to start construction on the 2nd set of tracks in early 2016.  
However, others have indicated that BNSF's project will not take place until 2018. 

      c. New Water Production Well:  United Crown Pump & Drilling has drilled the test 
well.  United Crown provided Welch-Comer with the sieve analysis for screen 
selection.  Welch-Comer prepared the screen selection and United Crown 
ordered the screen.  United-Crown anticipates receiving the screen on R4.7.16.  
Further, United Crown will install the screen and then proceed with developing 
the well (start test pumping) next week.  It is anticipated that the test pumping will 
be complete by F4.15.16.  

d. State Highway 41 Improvements:  in the spring/summer 2016, ITD will be 
conducting a significant amount of work on SH41, from SH53 to Spirit Lake.  The 
work will include: rubblize the existing asphalt, cement-treat the crushed asphalt 
and re-compact, incidental AC pavement widening, improving turn bays, tree 
removal to accommodate necessary intersection sight distance improvements 
and pavement resurfacing.  ITD has also indicated that they intend re-striping the 
travel lanes as 11-ft wide travel lanes (currently 12-ft wide). 

Public Works – Staff Projects 
a. City-Wide Transportation Plan:  The consultant has developed the sub-network 

model of Rathdrum's roadway system.  DEA has completed a draft of the 2010 
sub-network model (existing conditions) and the development of the 2030 sub-
network model. DEA has begun work on the scope of work in their recent 
supplemental agreement. 

b. 2016 Street Rehabilitation Program:   



 

f:\council packets\fy15-16\april\doc\public works staff report.docx 

Pa
ge
2	

We are in the process of evaluating roadways which may be candidates for an 
overlay/rehabilitation.  We anticipate that this list will not be complete in April/May 
2016. 

c. Meyer Road Pathway Extension (Silverado to Park Rose Estates subdivision):  We have 
completed a preliminary design and begun utility coordination activities.  There is 
1 property where right-of-way is needed to complete the pathway extension.  I 
met with the property owner last week to discuss the project. 

d. Boekel Pathway Extension - NE Corner of SH41 & Boekel:  We have 
completed a preliminary design and begun utility coordination activities.  There is 
1 property where easement is needed to complete the pathway extension.  The 
property owner is amenable to selling us an easement for the pathway. 

e. Flashing Pedestrian School Zone Signs:  The 5 sets of RRFB Solar-Powered 
Flashing School-Zone Crosswalk signs were ordered from Traffic Safety Supply 
Company in March 2016.  We anticipate receiving the sign systems by late-April.  
We are hoping to begin construction of the foundations for each sign by mid-to-
late April. 

f. Main Street Sidewalk Replacement - Mountain View High School to 
Washington Street:  We are seeking to replace the deteriorated concrete 
sidewalk and possibly construct new curbing along the south-side of Main Street. 

g. 2nd Street Improvements - McCartney Street to Mill Street:  We are seeking 
to installing concrete curbing, replacing deteriorated sidewalk panels on both 
sides of 2nd Street, install new drainage structures, widen the asphalt paving on 
2nd Street to allow for on-street parking, add 1 street light, and reconstruct the 
existing asphalt pavement. 

h. Updates to Development Impact Fee Program:  we are preparing to begin the 
updating process for the City's Circulation (Traffic), Parks and Police Impact Fees 
in April.  It is our intentions to be complete with these efforts and present final 
recommendations to the Rathdrum City Council in August 2016. 

2. Site Plans/Subdivision Development 

a. Rathdrum Bible Church Addition: Construction ongoing.  

b. Timber Landings (McGovern Annexation):  Construction plans were approved 
on 11/12/15 and construction of the first phase is ongoing. Final Plat Application 
was submitted on 11.19.15. After further review the Applicant is going to resubmit 
new plans, Staff is currently waiting. 

c. STEM Charter School:  Construction for site expansion is substantially complete 
until spring.  A “Site Improvement Agreement for Provisional Certificate of 
Occupancy” was executed with the owners providing appropriate performance 
surety for the remaining site work to be completed by 6/30/15.  STEM added 
additional parking paving and landscaping to the site in summer 2015 and 
requested inspection 11/5/15.  A small list of items remain to be completed from 
both landscape plans to occur in spring 2016.  Staff is currently in contact with 
STEM’s Engineer to discuss remaining items that need to be completed.  Staff 
also recently met with STEM representatives on 2/26/16 regarding a proposed 
2016 Classroom expansion project which will add 4 classrooms on the southwest 
side of 2014 Admin/classroom building.   

d. Weaver Industries:  We conducted a pre-application meeting on 3/4/14 for this 
expansion project, which includes a new 8,800 SFT building. Plans have been 
submitted, a review letter and redlines to site plan have been picked up by Paul 
Matthews on 4/11/14. Staff is currently waiting for a response. 

e. Marks Marine:  A site plan was approved 9/2/14 for two buildings to be added on 
site for boat storage and is still under construction at this time. Staff completed a 
final site inspection on 2/23/16 for Marks Marine; a few items remain to be 
completed prior to issuing a Certificate of Occupancy. 



 

f:\council packets\fy15-16\april\doc\public works staff report.docx 

Pa
ge
3	

f. NIC:  Construction of site/street development is underway. 

g. Corbin Crossing South:  Rathdrum City Council approved a preliminary plat on 
1.13.16.  Construction plans have been received and are in review.  The 
development agreement was approved by City Council and has been signed and 
recorded. Construction drawings have been reviewed and redline copies have 
been given to the Applicant for review. 

h. Prairie Sky - Phases 2, 3, 4 & 5: Applicant’s Engineer submitted the preliminary 
plat for review on 9.25.15. Staff has presented this to both Planning & Zoning 
Commission (favorable recommendation) and City Council (approved). We are in 
the process of amending the development agreement.  Construction drawings 
have been reviewed and a redline copies have been given to the Applicant for 
review.  

i. Trading Post:  Site development plans were approved on 10.8.15 and a pre-
construction meeting was held on 3/3/16.  Construction is underway.  

j. ACE Hardware:  Applicant has executed a Provisional Certificate of Occupancy 
for the remainder items which need to be completed. 

 



PROCLAMATION 

 
 

Whereas, child abuse and neglect are serious problems affecting more 
than 3.2 million of our nation’s children annually and thousands of 
children locally; and 

Whereas, child abuse and neglect respect no racial, reliqious, class or 
geographic boundaries, and 

Whereas, all of us want a safe, stable and nurturing environment for all 
of the nation’s and our community’s children, and 

Whereas, Mountain States Early Head Start, through its support of 
parenting classes, educational programs, and community service 
activities is making significant progress in strengthening families and 
communities in order to prevents child abuse and neglect, 

Now, Therefore I, Vic Holmes, Mayor of Rathdrum, Idaho, do hereby 
proclaim the month of April 2016 as; 

 
Child Abuse Prevention Month 
and urge citizens to use this time to better understand and recognize 
their role in supporting families and community prevention efforts and 
how they can respond to this grievous problem.  I would like to 
congratulate Mountain States Early Head Start for their continued 
success in helping families break the cycle of child abuse and neglect. 

 
 

 
Mayor, Rathdrum, Idaho April 2016 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 



f:\public works\shared files\ricohscans\traffic impact fee study - 2016\memo kj-council - impact fee committee - 4.1.16.docx 

Memo 
To:   City Council 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  April 1, 2016 

Re:  Traffic/Circulation Impact Fees 

 

We are in the process of updating our Traffic / Circulation Impact Fees.  As such, we 
are seeking to reconvene the following members to serve on the Citizen 
Development Advisory Committee: 

Larry Clark 
Bob Jones 
Ron Schmidt 
Jim Small 
Kris Storey 
George Thayer 

 

City staff proposes to update the Development Impact Fee Program, which was last 
updated in November 2011 (original Program prepared by Hofman Planning 
Associates in 2005). 

We are herein seeking Rathdrum City Council's confirmation of Mayor Holmes' 
recommendation appointments for the Citizen Development Advisory Committee. 

Also, as part of our efforts to complete the 2016 updates to the Development Impact 
Fee Program, Jerry Mason will be assisting us City Staff in the preparation & review 
of this product. 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 


	01a Council Agenda 04-13
	01b Rathdrum Agenda Notes
	01c April Calendar
	05a Council Minutes - 03-09-2016
	05b April Bills
	05ba Addendum 03-01 thru 03-31-16
	05c Prairie Sky Phases 2 3 4 and 5 Development Agreement
	05d Surplus Memo 04-13-16
	10a URD CC Memo
	10b City Administrator Job Description
	10c Street Banner Memo
	10ca Street Banner Design
	10cb Street Banner Quote
	10d School Resource Officer
	10e Generator Maintenance - 3.23.16
	10f Street Sweeper Lease - 3.25.16
	10g Water Well - Bid Phase and Construction Obs Agmt
	10h School Zone Flashing RRFB signs
	14333 LPA CEI.pdf
	14333 LPA CEI
	attachment no 1A (10-15 revision)
	14333 SOW
	14333 MH EST


	11a Finance & Administration Report
	11b P& R Council Report
	11d Public Works Staff Report
	12a Proclamation for Child Abuse
	12b Impact Fee Committee - 4.7.16



